DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MINUTES
Monday, November 19, 2020

The meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held Monday,
November 19, 2020 at 8:00 a.m. in the Commission Chambers, 301 S.
Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida. The following people were
present:

Board Members Present

Mr. Michael Sznapstajler, Chair

Mr. Joseph Hopkins

Ms. Tammy Kozinski

Ms. Quanita May, Commissioner (via Zoom)

Board Members Abhsent

Ms. Sheryl Cook, Vice Chair

Staff Members Present

Mr. Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director
Mr. Robert Jagger, City Attorney
Ms. Jennifer Lynch, Office Assistant

1. Call to Order

Mr. Sznapstajler called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.
2. Roll Call
Roli was called and members were noted present as stated above.

Board Action:

Commissioner May stated she is unable to attend the meeting today in the
Commission Chambers due to time constraints in attending another
meeting later this morning.

A motion was made by Ms. Kozinski, seconded by Mr. Hopkins, to permit
Ms. May to attend the meeting via Zoom. The motion carried (3-0).

3. Approval of Minutes




Reqular Meeting — October 22, 2020

A motion was made by Mr. Hopkins, seconded by Ms. Kozinski, to
approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 22, 2020 as
presented. The motion carried (4-0).

Public Comments by Persons Addressing the Board

Procedures for persons wishing to address the Board during the meeting
were included as part of the agenda.

DDA Staff Reports

a. Monthly Financial Report

Mr. Berger presented the staff report which was included as part of the
packet. Mr. Berger stated the expenses for the month are shown on the
report. Mr. Berger stated Gold & Associates has done an extensive
amount of work in preparation for the holiday season. Mr. Berger stated
the Farmers Market is still down in revenues. Mr. Berger stated a number
of families attended the Halloween event at the Farmers’ Market. Mr.
Berger stated live music has also been incorporated into the market. Mr.
Berger stated the SNAP program has worked very well and there have
been no problems with processing payments for the program.

b. Budget Amendment

Mr. Berger stated the Finance Department requested to receive monthly
statements for the SNAP program and asked that the SNAP account be
listed as a budget line item. Mr. Berger stated the DDA previously opened
a checking account and deposited $2,000 for reimbursement to vendors of
the Farmers Market for the SNAP program. Mr. Berger stated staff is
requesting the DDA approve two budget amendments: one for $2,500 for
FY2020 expenditures and revenues; and one for $4,000 for FY2021
expenditures and revenues.

Ms. Kozinski stated it appears there are more vendors at the Market.

Mr. Berger stated there are more vendors and more people attending the
Market.

ublic Comments:

There were no public comments.

Board Action;




A motion was made by Mr. Hopkins, seconded by Ms. May, to approve a
budget amendment for $2,500 for FY2020 expenditures and revenues and
a budget amendment for $4,000 for FY2021 expenditures and revenues,
in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (4-0).

C. Events Update — Sweet Saturday Event Agreement

Mr. Berger stated he just learned that the holiday parade has been
cancelled; however, the Sweet Saturday event is scheduled for December
5, 2020. Mr. Berger stated included in the packet is a proposed contract
for the event. Mr. Berger stated the event coordinator is requesting
$1,500 for support of the event, however, the DDA has consistently
approved $2,000 in the past.

Al Smith, Bullskye Direct Market, stated he has not received the permit
from the city for the planned event nor an answer as to whether the permit
will be issued. Mr. Smith stated he has not proceeded in coordinating the
events with the merchants since he does not know if the event will be held
due to COVID concerns. Mr. Smith stated he is concerned about public
scrutiny of events. Mr. Smith noted that an art festival was held at One
Daytona this past weekend and attendance was low.

Mr. Hopkins asked if Mr. Smith has incurred any significant expenditure in
planning for this event.

Mr. Smith stated no.

Mr. Hopkins stated he does not feel the event could successfully be
promoted at this time.

Ms. May stated she sent an email to the City Manager regarding the
permit and will check to see if an answer is received prior to the end of the
meeting.

Ms. Kozinski stated the Permitting Office shouid do their job and provide
Mr. Smith with an answer. Ms. Kozinski noted the application was filed
with the City on October 27, 2020 and has been sitting in the department
for almost a month.

Ms. May stated the Permitting Department is doing their job during very
difficult times. Ms. May stated she has no problem with people making
their own decision on where they go and what they do; however, the
welfare of the entire city must be considered.



Ms. Sznapstajler stated since the application was submitted, the number
of Covid cases has increased so he can understand why people would
want to be cautious in their approach. Mr. Sznapstajler stated the DDA
has the funds to support the event and it is just a matter of whether or not
we want to hold the event.

Mr. Sznapstajler stated the Board would continue with the meeting and
wait to see if a response is received from the City Manager.

Mr. Smith stated he is not implying that employees are not doing their job;
he understands these are hard times and difficult decisions have to be
made.

Ms. May stated she contacted City staff and they are in the process of
approving the permit for Sweet Saturday.

Mr. Berger stated the final crosswalk at Magnolia was completed and
opened yesterday.

Ms. May asked about the Holiday Parade; and Mr. Berger stated the
parade has been cancelled.

Mr. Jagger stated he reviewed the contract for the Sweet Saturday event
and it is fine. Mr. Jagger stated the amount of funding will have to be
determined so that can be included. Mr. Jagger stated it is outiined in the
contract that Bulls Eye's expenses would be reimbursed up to a certain
amount.

Mr. Sznapstajler stated he wants to make sure Mr. Smith is comfortable in
proceeding to hold the event and the amount of funding for reimbursement
purposes is up to $2,000.

Mr. Smith stated he has mixed feelings but he feels it is a time to show off
the renovations that have been completed in the downtown.

Mr. Hopkins asked if Mr. Smith thinks he can successfully put on an event
in two weeks. Mr. Hopkins stated an unsuccessful event is as much a
blemish as not having an event.

Ms. Kozinski stated she agrees with Mr. Hopkins and feels putting
together an event in two weeks will be a waste of $2,000.

Ms. May stated she is confused because she thought the Board wanted to
hold safe events in order to help the merchants in the downtown.



Mr. Sznapstajler stated the DDA can risk the $2,000 from the event
budget, knowing if things get worse the permit can be revoked. Mr.
Sznapstajler stated if Mr. Smith feels comfortable doing the event, the
DDA can support him; however, if Mr. Smith does not feel comfortable
doing the event, the DDA can wait and hold ancther event during better
times.

Mr. Berger stated an ad has been placed in The Observer for the event.
Mr. Berger stated if the event is held, the information can be sent out
quickly through social media and radio.

Mr. Hopkins stated if Mr. Smith decides to proceed with the event, he will
support the expenditure of $2 000; however, he feels Mr. Smith is
indicating that it may not be worth it to hold the event. Mr. Hopkins stated
he feels the marketing efforts should be directed toward promoting
downtown, the streetscape and the holiday displays and forego the event.

Mr. Smith stated the hesitancy on the city’s part to issue the permit has
made him hesitant. Mr. Smith stated there will be public scrutiny
associated with holding the event.

Ms. May stated she agrees with Mr. Hopkins and would like to see the
funds directed toward promoting the downtown and improvements.

Mr. Berger stated perhaps a Sweet Saturday could be held at the
Farmers’ Market which would also be part of the holiday marketing
campaign.

Mr. Smith stated saving the funds to be used for events in the spring may
be a better use of the funds.

Public Comments:

There were no public comments.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Hopkins, seconded by Ms. May, to relieve
BullsEye Direct Marketing from holding the Sweet Saturday event. The
motion carried (4-0).

d. Public Safety Update

Mr. Berger stated Capt. Scott Lee is in attendance and stated in the future,
the Public Safety report will be placed earlier on the agenda,



Capt. Scott Lee stated city wide, crime is down by about 26%. Capt. Lee
stated staffing has improved in the Beach Street area. Capt. Lee stated
an officer is assigned for each shift to the Beach Street area.

Mr. Hopkins asked if the patrol area for the officers includes Marina Point.

Capt. Lee stated the Beach Street area typically ends at Orange Avenue
but they would respond if there is an incident in that area.

Mr. Hopkins stated there have been people literally living on the bench
areas or in bus stops near Marina Point. Mr. Hopkins stated he is
concerned that these people are not taking advantage of the homeless
facility.

Capt. Lee stated his officers cannot force someone to go to the shelter but
they do encourage people to go there.

Mr. Sznapstajler asked if the city staff has occupied the office space on
Palmetto.

Capt. Lee stated staff is working to get the office furnished and occupied.
Capt. Lee stated both Code Enforcement and Police will be in the office
space before the end of the year.

Ms. Kozinski stated she has been made aware of issues under the
Orange Avenue bridge and some believe the issues are those that should
be addressed by Volusia County and some feel the city should address
the concerns. Ms. Kozinski stated there are concerns of vagrants in the
area.

Capt. Lee stated the Police staff is looking into the issue. Capt. Lee stated
part of the problem is a city issue since it abuts the Chamber of
Commerce property but the larger area is a Volusia County issue. Capt.
Lee stated graffiti has been painted on the Orange Avenue bridge and
Volusia County is working to address that issue. Capt. Lee stated he is
working with Volusia County to address the vagrant issue.

Ms. May asked if cameras could be placed in the area. Ms. May stated
she is concerned about the number of teenagers sitting on the bridge in
the late evening.

Capt. Lee stated cameras could be placed there but there would be a cost
involved.

e. Farmers’ Market Update — Market Manager Contract



Mr. Berger provided copies of the existing contract with the Farmers’
Market Manager. Mr. Berger stated he would like direction from the Board
on how to adjust the current contract. Mr. Berger stated the current
Manager is well received by the vendors and customers. Mr. Berger
stated two new produce vendors will be at the Market this weekend and
there is a continuing search to find additional vendors. Mr. Berger stated
the Manager has increased work of putting out and taking down additional
traffic controls each weekend, which should be included as part of the
contract. Mr. Berger stated the current contract outlines the hours for
each Saturday from 7:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. but would like that changed to
compensate for actual hours. Mr. Berger stated the hours would include
reporting time as well as time to recruit additional vendors. Mr. Berger
stated there are also additional duties associated with the SNAP program.
Mr. Berger asked that the incentive program be reviewed to determine if it
is still applicable.

Mr. Hopkins stated he is pleased that the Manager has stayed with the
Market given the challenges she has faced, including the relocation of the
Market. Mr. Hopkins stated currently there are 30 hours worked each
month for time at the Market plus additional time for bookkeeping. Mr.
Hopkins stated he would like to see some evidence of what is being done
to recruit vendors and a more active marketing campaign, noting the
Manager has not appeared before the Board to provide any reports.

Mr. Jagger stated the contract requires a report on recruiting activities and
that the Manager report to the DDA.

Mr. Berger stated a monthly report is received by staff from the Market
Manager. Mr. Berger stated that has not been provided to the Board but
that could be done.

Mr. Hopkins stated it is not necessary for the Manager to attend every
meeting; but he would like to receive a written report on her marketing
efforts. Mr. Hopkins stated there has been no direct communication with
the Manager and he feels that is important.

Mr. Berger stated a written report will be provided by the Manager at the
next meeting.

f. Downtown Projects Update — Beach Street Streetscape &
Occupancy Rate

Mr. Berger stated the Beach Street Streetscape project is complete. Mr.
Berger stated the holiday decorations are in the process of being installed.
Mr. Berger stated additional utility work will have to be done in the Brown
& Brown project area. Mr. Berger stated the Delta West project is



proceeding and the developer is looking for an incentive on the parking
area.

Mr. Jagger there will be a number of parking spaces set aside in the
parking garage that will be for public parking use.

Mr. Berger stated the Burgoyne project will be presented to the City
Commission on December 16, 2020.

Ms. Kozinski asked when the M Bar will be opening on Beach Street.

Mr. Berger stated he has not had a response regarding the opening.

Ms. Kozinski asked for the status of Bourbon on Beach.

Mr. Berger stated the owner has been doing interior work and hoped to be
open for the holidays. Mr. Berger stated he does not believe they will be
open this year.

Mr. Berger stated a wine bar is proposed for the site at the corner of Bay
and Beach. Mr. Berger stated Legends is still planning on opening but
have delayed due to Covid. Mr. Berger stated Zappi's is planning on re-

opening in December.

Gold & Associates Presentation

Keith Gold, Gold & Associates, presented the monthly report which was
included as part of the packet. Mr. Gold stated the calendar of events and
merchant listing are updated weekly. Mr. Gold stated the “open for
business” page is continually updated. Mr. Gold stated he is evaluating a
customer relations management system to help project the return on
investment and that will be presented to Mr. Berger and the city team over
the next week or two. Mr. Gold stated ads have been placed in The
Observer for the holiday season; and ads have been placed in The
Daytona Times to encourage people to visit the downtown area. Mr.
Berger stated radio advertising will start early next week. Mr. Gold stated
new banners have been created for the downtown. Mr. Gold stated he is
working with the city on the holiday rack card which will be printed in the
next week. Mr. Gold stated a version of the rack card will be placed in the
utility bills. Mr. Gold stated e-marketing is distributed to consumers and
vendors on a regular basis.

Mr. Gold stated he has developed a plan for staff regarding recruitment of
vendors for the Farmers’ Market. Mr. Gold stated an e-blast will be sent to
organic farmers during the next week to help with the recruitment process.



Mr. Hopkins asked how those vendors will contact the Market Manager.

Mr. Gold stated there is a page at the website that can be filled out by
potential vendors and the Market Manager can access the information
there.

Mr. Hopkins stated he would like the Manager’s report to include statistical
information on the number of responses she receives through advertising
and the website and what is being done to recruit them.

Mr. Gold stated currently the campaign is under budget so additional
funds could be used for advertising.

Mr. Hopkins stated he is not comfortable in holding an event in the
downtown at this time but feels people should be invited to the downtown
so they see what we have to offer.

Ms. May asked if there are requirements from the DDA as to the type of
tables and chairs that can be placed in front of their businesses.

Mr. Berger stated those items are approved administratively by staff as is
outlined in the Land Development Code. Mr. Berger stated that
information can be provided through an e-blast. Mr. Berger stated the
Covid procedures are on the city's website regarding table placement.

Public Comment:

There was no public comment.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Hopkins, seconded by Ms. Kozinski, to allocate
additional funds to close the gaps in the DDA marketing campaign. The
motion carried (4-0).

Public Comments

There were no public comments.

Board Comments

Mr. Berger stated the next meeting will be December 17, 2020.

Mr. Sznapstajler stated he has a conflict on that date and asked the
meeting date in January.



Mr. Berger stated he will poll the Board to determine a mutually-agreeable
date.

Ms. May stated she found a grant that is available through the NAACP for
printing vouchers and asked if those vouchers could be applied to the
Farmers’ Market. Ms. May stated the grant is for children up to 5 years
old. Ms. May stated she has provided the same information to the director
of the Healthy Start program who could help distributing information to
their clients to encourage them to attend the Farmers’ Market.

Mr. Sznapstajler stated the information looks great but it would have to be
determined if a local government or DDA would be eligible to apply.

Ms. Kozinski asked who would complete the application for the DDA.

Mr. Berger stated he would check to see if the grant is of interest to the
city and if someone would be assigned to complete the application.

Ms. May stated the application must be completed by a 501(c)3; and since
the Midtown Redevelopment Board is a 501(c)3, perhaps Commissioner
Reed could assist with the application process.

Mr. Jagger suggested contacting the agency to determine if a
governmental agency can apply.

Ms. May stated she will talk with the City Manager to see if the City's
grants writer can help with the application process. Ms. May stated she
sent the application to other agencies as well so she is hoping several
agencies can be involved with the program.

9. Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Ul 0 o b

Michael O. Sznapstajler, Chair '.-'J'e'nnifer Lynch, Office Assistant

T,

10



